Travel Food Services Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

Particulars Note <1 Viarch 2024 31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property. plant and equipment 3 1,221.75 956.33 963.41
Capital Work-in-progress 3 227.90 64.81 15.94
Goodwill 15.47 15.47 15.47
Right-of-use assets 4 2,624.88 2,545.86 3.097.25
Other Intangible assets 5 7.62 7.82 8.45
[nvestments accounted tor using the equity method 43 2,180.61 1.381.19 8§79.41
Financial assets
(1) Investments 6 0.10 0.10 0.10
(1i) Loans 7 1,352.71 889.21 236.47
(111) Other financial assets 8 630.45 456.76 458.34
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 556.66 516.24 570.88
Income tax assets (net) 10 214.53 89.23 124.78
Other non-current assets 11 319.79 122.80 49.61
Total non-current assets 9,352.47 7,045.84 6,420.11
Current assets
[nventories 12 115.97 105.76 71.17
Financial assets
(i) Investments 13 3.755.70 3,255.29 2.274.10
(i1) Trade receivables 14 1.050.19 1,139.56 480.53
(11i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 27221 421.93 211.76
(1v) Bank balances other than (iii) above 16 942 .49 922.43 803.00
(v) Loans 7 106.57 60.00 0.03
(vi) Other financial assets 17 411.06 222.39 190.4¥
Other current assets 18 227.24 150.04 [13.71
Total current assets 6.881.43 6,277.40 4,144.78
Total assets 16,233.90 13,323.24 10,564.89
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 19 38.73 38.73 38.73
Other equity 20 7.966.97 6,516.02 4,058.53
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8.005.70 6,554.75 4,097.26
Non-controlling interests 143.09 95.50 62.86
Total equity 8,148.79 6,650.25 4,160.12
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note s i .
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 22 582.33 220.16 342.48
(i1) Lease habilities 23 2.658.61 2.862.71 349231
(i1i) Other financial liabilities 24 101.67 87.36 91.64
Provisions 25 71.02 38.65 59.02
Other non-current habilities 26 5.55 9.31 13.19
Total Non-current liabilities 3,419.18 3,238.18 3,998.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 27 55.48 90.36 39.19
(i1) Lease Liabilities 28 864.32 656.35 522.72
(111) Trade payables 29
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 188.51 126.09 52.33
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro cnterprises and
small enterprises. 2,558.20 1,658.30 1,076.63
(iv) Other financial liabilities 30 511.56 349.89 32543
Other current liabilities 195.11 213.28 136.26
Provisions 32 256.36 239.99 218.51
Current tax liabilities (net) 33 36.39 100.54 35.06
Total current liabilities 4,663.93 3,434.80 2,406.13
Total liabilities 8,085.11 6,672.99 6,404.77
Total equity and liabilities 16,233.90 13,323.24 10,564.89
Summary of material accounting policies | &2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registration number: 101248W/W-100022

N

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Food Services Private Limited

CIN: U55209MH2007PTC176045

Pw»—-_:"’-‘]-’——

Karan Kapur
Director
DIN: 0171148

Place: Mumbai

Date: 30 September 2024

Varun Kapur
Director
DIN: 0113399



Travel Food Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended

' 31 March 2024 31 Vlarch 2023
Revenue from operations 34 13.963.22 10.671.50
Other income 33 639.70 364 32
Total income 14.622.92 11.035.82
Expenses
Cost of materials consurmed 36 261115 1,930.91
Purchascs of stock-in-trade 37 265.06 168.93
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade 38 (28.83) 443
Employee bencefits expense 39 2.298.53 1.593.70
Finance costs 40 51691 478 06
Depreciation and amortisation expense 41 1.108.34 831.08
Other expenses 42 4,696.07 3.235.33
Total expenses 11.467.21 8.242.66
Profit before share of profit associates and joint venture and income taxes 3,155.71 2.793.15
Share of protit of associates and joint venturc, net of tax 43 717.58 477.82
Profit before tax 3.873.29 3,270.97
Tax expense
Current tax 44 934.67 706.77
Deferred lax 44 (41 1N 31.42
Tax expense 893.48 758.19
Prolit for the vear 2,979.81 2,512.78
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement ol defined benefit Liability 3.01 11.77
Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 44 (0.76) (324)
Share of OCI of associates and joint venture, net of tax 0.59 (033)
Items that will be reclassificd to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating financial statemeats of forcign operations 217 11.38
Other comprehensive income for the year, net ol tax 5.01 19.58
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2.984.82 2.532.36
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 2¥76 46 2.438.02
Non-controlling interests 103.35 74.76
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 477 19 46
Non-controlling interests 0.24 0.12
Total comprehensive income for the vear attributable to:
Owners of the Company 288123 245748
Non-controlling intevests 103.59 74.88
Earnings per equity share (face value of INR 10 each)
Basic earnings per share (INR) 46 74271 629 30
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 46 74271 629 50
Summary of material accounting, policies 1 &2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAT Firm Registration number: 101248W W-[00022

NN

Farhad Bamiji

Partner

Membership No: 105234
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ol
Travel Food Services Private Limited
CIN: U53209MH2007PTC176043

Kuran Kapur

Director

DIN: 0171148

Place: M
Date: 30

umbai
September 2024

Varun Kapur
Director
DIN: 0113399



Travel Food Services Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stuted)

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Cash {lows from operating activities
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation cxpenscs

Finance costs

Interest income under the cffective interest method

Interest income on income tax refund

Net gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment (Net)
Gain on termination ot lease arrangement

Net gain on sale of current investments

Net change in fair value of financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Doubtful debts/advance written back

Share of profit of associates and joint venture, net of tax
Reversal of provision lowards interest receivables

Gain arising on financial labilities carried at amortised cost
Impairment loss on financial and non-financial assets
lmpairment on property. plant and equipment

Unrealised gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations
Operating cash inflow beforc working capital changes

Adjustments for working capital change in:
-(Increase) in inventories

-Decrease. (increase) in trade receivables
-Increase in trade payables

-(Increase) decrease in other financial assets
-Increase in other financial liabilities
-(increase) in other assets
-(Increase)/decrease in other liabilities
-Increase in provisions

Net increase / (decrease) in working capital

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash {lows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress and capital advances)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment's
Purchase of Other Intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of current investments

Purchase of current investments

[nvestment in equity instruments in associates

[nvestment in equity instruments in joint venture

Loans given

Proceeds trom maturity of bank deposits (including interest)
Investment in bank deposits

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid

Proceeds trom Inter company deposit

Repayment of borrowings

Finance cost

Pavment of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in) from financing activities ( C)

Net (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

3.873.29 3,270.97
1.108.34 831.0%
51691 478.06
(203.64) (130.93)
(2.92) (3.07)
(3.30) (3.69)

(49.07) .
(256.40) (67.80)
7.49 (74.63)
(18.03) (32.05)
(718.16) (477.50)
(80.64) (0.01)
(1.86) (1.90)
55.64 68.90
46.83 0.91
(11.54) (9.90)
4,262.93 3.848.43
(10.21) (34.59)
82.76 {636.41)
912,56 634.77
(325.53) 1.32
174.88 15.00
(285.88) (63.03)
(21.92) 73.14
28.74 21.12
555.40 (8.68)
4.818.34 3.839.75
(1,131.26) (610.64)
3.687.08 3.229.11
(786.43) (373.9%)
18.55 712
(3.03) 493)
6.254.30 172245
(6.505.79) {5.561.20)

(0.23) -
(81.00) (24.30)
(340.53) (669.84)
936.76 807.32
(878.95) (870.33)
(1.386.41) (1.967.70)
(1.486.29) (42.00)

19126 :
(189.99) 17115)
(21.86) (10.20)
(1.243.52) (R97.91)
(2450.40) (1.051.26)
(149.72) 210.15
12193 20178
121.93

272.21

i




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Al amounts are in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

1. The above Consclidated Statemnent of Cash Elows has been prepared under the “Tndirect Method™ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, “Statement

ol Cash Flows".

2 Ind AS 7 requires the entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities, including both changes arising from cashflows and non-cash changes. suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities

Particulars Leascs liabilities Borrowings, Total

Balance as on 01 Apri} 2022 4.015.03 381.67 4.396.70

Changes from financing cash flows

Payment of lease liability (897.91) - (897.91)

Repayment of Term Loan - (71 15) (71.15)

Total changes from financing cash (lows 3.117.12 310.52 3,427.64

Other changes

Liability-related

New leases 965 - 9.65

Intetest expense 392.27 3255 424.82

Interest paid - (32.53) 32.55)

Balance as on 31 March 2023 3.519.04 310.52 3.829.57

Changes from financing cash Rows

Proceeds from inter company deposits . 491.26 491.26

Payment of lease liability (1,243 52) - (1,243.52)

Repavment of Term Loan - (189.99) (189.99)

Total changes from financing cash flows 2,275.52 611.79 2,887.31

Other changes

Liability-related

New leases 805.89 805.89

Gain on termination of lease arrangement 46.83 - 46.83

Interesl expense 394 68 46.15 440.83

Interest paid - (20.12) (20.12)

Balance as on 31 March 2024 3.522.92 637.82 4.160.74

Break of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear :-

Cash on hand 41.77 23 83

Cash in Transit 1Lt 633

Balances with banks

- on current accounts 219.35 389 55
272.21 421.93

The accompanying notes torm an integral part of the consolidaled tinancial statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration number: 10{248W/W-100022

]

NS

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbat
Date: 30 Scptember 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Travel Food Services Private Limited
CIN: U55209MH2007PTC 176045

Karan Kapur
Dircctor
DIN: 0171148

Place: Mumbai

Date: 30 Scptember 2024

Varun Kapur

DIN: 0113399
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 38.73
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period error -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 38.73
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 38.73
Balance as at 1 April 2022 38.73
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period error

Restated balance as at 1 April 2022 38.73
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 38.73

(b) Other equity

Reserves and Surplus

Items of OCI

Exchange differences
on

Total attributable

Securities Retained . . to the owners of the] Non controlling
premium earnings translating financial Company interest
statements of foreign
operations
Balance as at 1 April 2023 996.70 5,475.78 43.54 6,516.01 95.50
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024
Profit for the year - 2,876.46 - 2,876.46 103.35
Other comprehensive income (OCI) - - 2.17 2.17
- Remeasurement of defined benefit liability, net of income tax* - 2.60 - 2.60 0.24
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 996.70 8,354.84 45.71 9,397.25 199.09
Distributions
Dividend declared and paid by subsidiary company - - - - (56.00)
Dividend declared and paid by the Company - (1,430.29) - (1,430.29) -
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (1,430.29) - (1,430.29) (56.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 996.70 6,924.55 45.71 7,966.97 143.09




T ravel Food Services Private Limited
iotes to the consolidated financial statements
(AN dinavnts ave in INR millions, unless othervive stated)

1. Group overview
Travel Food Services Private Limited (the Company), is registered under the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered ofTice at Block-A South Wing st Floor Shiv Sagar
Estate Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 40001¥.

These consolidated financial staicments comprise the Company and its subsidiarics (together referred 1o as the ‘Group') and Group's interest in associates and joint venture.

The Group is primarily involved in managing and opcrating food and beverage outlets (Travel QSR) and lounges in travel focations such as airports and highways. Travcl
QSR business comprises a range of curated food and beverage (“F&B™ cuncepts across cuisines, brands and formats, which are adapted to cater to customers™ demands for
speed and convenience within travel environments. Lounge business comprises designated areas within airport terminals, accessible primarily by first and business class
passengers, members of airline loyalty prograrmes, select credit card and debit card holders, and members of loyalty programmes & also for walk in custorners.

The Group and its associates and joinl venture have market presence in India and intemationally. The Group and its associates and joint venture manage and operate Travel
QSR & lounges at travel locations such as airports and highways

2A. Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (ludian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Group's consolidated financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2023 were prepared in accordance with Rule 3(2) of the Companics (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Group's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Tnd AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Group is provided in Notc 56.

The consolidated financial statemcnts were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30 September 2024,
Details of accounting policics arc included in Note 2B.

(ii) Basis ol measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following items.

» investments - measured at fair valuc,
» defined benefit plans — defined benefit liabilities less plan assets measured at fair value

(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statemenls arc presented in Indian Rupees "(INR)" or "(Rs.)", which is also functional currency of the Company and its Tndian subsidiarics. The functional

currency of forcign subsidiaries is the currency of the primary cconomic environment in which the entity operates. Foreign currency transactions arc recorded at exchange
tates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet dates and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are

measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retransiated.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearcst millions, unless otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount is represented as '0' ('zero') it construes a valuc Tess than five
thousands.

(iv) Use of judg ts and estimat
In preparing these financial slatements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

(a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recogniscd in the financial statements is included in
the following notes:

Note 52: Leases

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Such a identification of a lcase requires significant judgement. The
Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to excrcise that option; and periods covered
by an option lo terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain 1o exercise an option to
extend a lease, or not te cxercisc an option Lo lerminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or nof to exercise the option te terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate of the Group.

Note 9: Recognition of deferred tax on undistributed profits of subsidiarics

The Company recognizes deferred tax on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries as the Compeny controls dividend policy of its subsidiarics i.c., the { .}aﬂ:nm co_’ I
(o)

timing of rgyegal of the related taxable temporary differences and management is satisfied that they will reverse in the foreseeable future,




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(A1 amotns are an INR midhions. nndesy otherasse stated)

(b) Assumplions und estimation uncertainties
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management o make judgements, estimates and a~sumiptions that altect the
Actual results may differ trom these estimates. Estimates and

application ot accounting policics and the reported amounrs of assets. liabilites. income and expenses.
underlymg assumpbions are reviewed on an ongomyg basis. Resvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the esimates are revised and in any

future periads affected

The arcas involving signilicant estimates and judgements are:

Usetil life of propeny. plamt & equipment - Note 3

Lease termm - Note 532

Estimation of Defined Benelit liabiliy - Note 43

Recognition ol delerred lax assels - Note 9

Recogmtion and measurement of provision and conungencies - Nole 28,
Nole 32 and Nole 48

Impaimment ol trade recen ables and other financial asvets - Nole 30

(v) Operating cycle

All assets and Habilitics have been classified as curtent or non-current as per the Group's notmal operating evele and other critena set out above which aie in uccordance
with the Schedule 11 to the Act. Based on the time involved between the acquisition ol assets for processing and thewr 1ealization w cash und cash equivalent, the Group
cle for determining current and non-current classification ot assets and habilities i the balance sheet

has identified ta elve months as its operatin

(vi) Measurement of Tair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and diselosures require the measurement of tir values, for both fimancial and non-financial assels and liubilities

The Group has an eslablished contiol [ramew otk with respeet to the neasurement of fair salues. This includes a saluation team that has overall responsibitity for
overseemy all sigmificant tar value measurements. meluding Level 3 tar values. and reports direetly 1o the chief tinancial olticer

The valuation team tegularly reviews sigmiicant unobsersable inputs and valuation adjustments 15 third party mitormation. such as broker quotes or pricing senvices. is used
to measure fur values, then the vaduation team asscsses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusson that these viluisions meet the requirements
of the Accounting Standards, including the Jevel n the fair value hicrwchy in which the valuations should be classiticd

Significant valuation issues are reported Lo the Group's audit commuttee Fair values are categonsed mto different levels in a fan value luerarchy based on the mputs used in
the valuation technigues as follows

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) m actinve markets for identical assets o1 Liabilities

inputs other than quoted prices meluded in Level | that ure obsenable for the assel or liability, either directly (ie as prices) arindnectly (i e derived fom prices)

Level
Level 3:mputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obscrvable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the farr value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses abservable market clata as far us possible. [fthe inpurs used to measure the fan value offan asset o
a liability fall into different levels of the (air value hietarchy. then the Fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same lesel ol the law value hicrarchy as the

lowest level input that is significant to the catite meusurement. The Group recognises transters between levels ot the fair value hierachy at the end of the reporting penaed

during which the change has occurred Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values s meluded in note 30
2B. Material accounting policies

(i) Basis ol consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group “controls” an entity when it 15 exposed (o, or has rights to, vanable retums from s involvement with the entity
and has the ability 1o affect those retums through its power over the entitv. The financial statements of subsidiaties are meluded i the consohdated financial staternents

fiont the date on w hich control commences untif the date on which conteoi ceases

Consolidation procedure followed 1s as under: Items of assers. Tabilities, cquity, meome. expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidianies are combined
like to like basis. For this purpose, meome and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liubilities recogmized in the consolidated financial

statements at the acquisition date

(b) Non-controlling interests {(NC1)
NClare measured intially at then proportionate share of the acquiree’s wdentifiable net assets wt the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group™s interest m i subsidiary that

do not result in a toss ol conuol are accounted for as equily Ltansactions

(¢) Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary. it derceognises the assets and labilities of the subsidiary . and any related NCTand other components of equity. \ny
resulting wain or loss (s tecogmised nprafit or foss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at tair salue when contial is dos:

(d) Equity-accounted inyestees
[he Group’s wterests in equity -accounted investees comptize inlerests in associates and a jomt s enture

Assoctates aie those entities m which the Group has signiticant mlluenee, but not conttol or joint control. over the financial and operating policies. A joinl venlure 1s an

artangement in which the Group has jomt contiel. whereby the Group has nights (o the net assets ol the artangement. rather than nghts w1~ assets and obliganons o i

liabilires

[nletests m associates and the jomtventure are accotnted for using the cquity method. They ate inially recogmased at cost which includes transaction costs Subsequent (v
ininal recogmtion. the consohdated tinaneial statements include the Group s share ol the profit o loss and OCT of equity accounted mvestees, unl the dale on wluch
s en o associates is not chiminated on consolidation

stgmificant influence or joint conttol ceases aterest income of loans




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions. unless othenvise stated)

(¢) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions. and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains or losses). including merger of a subsidiary with
the parent, arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses arc climinated in the same way as unrcalised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Balances such as reccivables or payables
and deposits or loans to or from cquity-accounted investees and interest income or expense arising on balances with cquity-accounted investees arc not climinated.

(f) Common control - Business Combination

Business combinations involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties, both before and
after the business combination and where that control is not transitory, are accounted for as per the pooling of interest method. The business combination is accounted for as if
the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was cstablished; for this
purpose. comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved, and they appear in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the
consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

(ii) (a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in cxchange for those goods or scrvices Revenue is measured at the transaction price (net of variable consideration) received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment, various discounts and schemes offered by the Company and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements
as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks. However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/ Goods and Service (GST) is not received by the company on its own
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. No element of
financing is decmed present as majority of sales arc on cash basis and credit sales arc made with normal credit period consistent with market practice, The following specific
recognilion criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Tvpe of products and service Revenue recognition policies

Lounge services Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered to the customers and there are no
unfulfilled liabilities. The performance obligation is fulfilled at the time of customer availing
the services of the lounge.

Travel QSR Travel QSR represents sale of food and beverages predominantly to passengers. Revenue from
Travel QSR is recognised at the point that control of the goods is passed to the customer, This
is deemed to be at the point of sale of food and beverages. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price which is consideration received or receivable net of discounts, excluding
taxcs or dutics collected on behalf of the government.

Management and other services Income from management and other services is recognized on accrual basis and in accordance
with the contractual arrangement entered into with the respective parties. The performance
obligation 1y fulfilled over the period of time.

Development of Software Applications and Digital Platforms* Revenue from the development of custom software applications and digital platforms is
recognized over time, as the services are provided, following the input method (e.g., labour
hours incurred) or output method (e.g., milestones achieved), depending on which better
reflects the progress towards completion.

If the contract terms specify milestones or delivery points, revenue is recognized upon the
completion and delivery of these milestones, provided that the customer has accepted the
deliverables and collectability is reasonably assured.

Dcployment and Intcgration Scrvices* Deployment and intcgration scrvices are recognized as revenue when the services are rendered,
and the customer is able to benefit from the functionality of the software or platform in its
cuvltotinetit.

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when the software or platform is successfully
deployed and accepted by the customer.

Maintcnance and Support Services* Revenue from maintecnance and support services is recognized ratcably over the term of the
contract. These services arc typically provided under time-based contracts, where the Group
provides ongoing support, bug fixes, updates, and other maintenance services. If the
maintenance services are billed separately, the revenue is deferred and recognized over the
period in which the maintenance services are provided,

* The Group is in process of launching the services. Until 31 March 2024, there are no revenue recognised for the said services.

Other Operating income
Strategic Tie-up fees
Income from Strategic Tie-up fees is recognized on accrual basis and in accordance with the contractual arangement entered into with the customer.

Any other operating income
All other revenue is recognised in the period in which the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Nates to the consolidated financial statements
U omounts wre in INR mdlions. auniess othernse siated)

2B. Material accounting policies (conlinued)

(b) Contract halances

(A) Cuntract assets

A contiact asset 15 the right W consideration w exchange for services tendered to the customer. 1f the Group performs by rendenng senvices to a customer before the

customet pays consideration or before payment 15 due. a contract asset (s recognised for the camed consideration that 15 conditional

(B) Contract liabilities

A contract liabdlity is the obligation 1o transfer services Lo a custemer tor which the Group has received consideration from the customer. IFa customer pays consideration
before the Group renders scrvices to the customer, a contract liubility is recognised when the payment is made Contract liabilities are recogmised as revenue when Lhe
Group performs under the contract

(C) Trade receivables
A trade recervable 15 recognised 11 an amount of consideration is unconditional (i.c.. only the passage of ime 1s required before payment of the consideration s due). Trade
reccivables that do not contam a signilicant financing component are measured at tiansaction price. Further, tefer 1o accounting policies af financial assets

(v) Employee benelits

Short-term employee benefits
All employee benelits pavable wholly within twelve months of tenderiag the service are cla:

ified as short-term emplovee benetits. The undiscounted amount of short-term
cmplovee benelils expected Lo be paid m exchange for the services rendered by employees 1s recoumzed as an expense during the penod

Defined contribution plan

The delined contibution plan s a post-cmployment benelit plan under which the Group contnibutes fixed contribution 1o a government administered fund and will have no
legal or constiuctive obligation tw pay further conuibution. The Group’s defined contribution plan comprises of provident fund. The Group's conutbution to defined
contrtbution plans are recognised in the statement ol prolit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related services

Defined hencefit plans

The Group has delined benefit plans comprising of grotuity. Group's liability towards gratuity lability ts unfunded. The present value of the defined benefit liability is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method. The rate used to discount defined benetit Tability is deternuned by reference to market
vields at the Balance Sheet date on [ndian Government Bonds for the estimated term of liability

amounts wcluded in net interest on the net defined

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuartal gamns and losses. and (b) the elfect of the wsset ceiling. i any. fexcluding
benefit liability) are 1ecoenised immediately i the balance sheet with a comesponding debit or credil to reained ewmings through othier comprehensive income i the
period in wineh they oceur: Re-meustrements are not reclassified o statement ol profit and loss n subscquent periods

Gains or losses on the curtarlment or settlement are recognised immediately m profit and loss when the curtailment or settlement oceurs

Compensated absences

The emplosees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utifise 1t future service pertods and all the unuulised leave from the
previous year will lapse after 30t June of the subsequent year. Sinee the compensated absences fall wholly witlhin twelve months after Lhe end ol the period in which the
emplovees render the related senviee and are also expected 1o be utilized whelly within twelve moaths after the end of such period. the benetit i classified as a short-term
employee benefit. The Group records a liability for such compensated absences in the petiod in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement.
Provssiun for compensated absences is determined on the basis of leave eredited o mdividual cmployees™ account and the Tast dvawn salary and 15 charged to the statement

ol profit ot loss

(vi) Income tax
Income Lux expense comptises curtent and deferred tax. 1t is recogmsed in prolit or loss except to the extent tat 1t refates 1o a business combmation. vt items recogintsed
direetly m equity or in Other comprehensive meome

Currenf tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable of receivable on the tavable income or loss for the vear and any adjustiment to the lax payable or recervable niespeet of
previots years, The amount of curent lax payable or receivable is e best esiimute of the wx amount expected Lo be paid or received that retlecs uncertainty related to
incone tises, 10any . 1 1s measured usmy tax rates enacted or substantiely enacted at the reporting dale

Current tax assels and fabilities aie offset onls 11 thete is a legully enforeeable nght 1o set ofl the recognised amounis. and 1t is witended o realise the asset and setile the
liabihits onanet basis or simultaneous|v

Deferred tax

Defermed tx is recogmsed in respect of temporany differences between the cartying amounts of assets and liabilities for finuncial reportng purposes and the conesponding

amounts used o1 taxabion puposes: Delurred tax is also recognised in respect ot ciarmed forvand 1ax losses and tax eredins

Delerred tax s not recoenised tor:

e lemporany diderences on the imtial recognsion of asaets of Babilities ina transaction that

- s 1ot a busiiess combimation; i

- at the tme of the ransaction (0 allects neather accounting nor taxable profitor loss and
1) dous not give nise o equal txable and deductible temporay ditferences

» temporany ditferences related o mvestments in subswdiutes. associates and jomt arrangements Lo the extent that the Group is able to contral the timmg of the 1eversd
the temporary ditterences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresceable futwe: and

= tanable wmporany dilTerences arisimg on the mital recogniion of goodwill

TN
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Noles to the consolidated (inancial statements
(A amounts are w INR millons uniess othersaose siaeed)

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

Deterred tax assels are recognised for unused fax losses. unused Lx credits and deductible emporary differences to the extent that it s probable thul futwre taxable profits
will be uvaulable against which they can be used. Future laxuble profits are deternmined bused on the reversal of relevant axable wimporary differences. 1 the amount off
tanable temporary differences is insulficient o recognise 4 deterred tax asset m full. then future taxable profits. adjusted for reversals of exisimg lemporary differences. are
considered. based on the busness plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group: Delerred tax assets are reviewed at each reportimy date and are reduced  the extent that
1tis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised: such reductions are reversed when the probability ot future taxable profits improves

Delerred tas is measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liabitity is settled, based on the Jaw s that have been
enactled or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of defened tax retleets the lax consequences that would follow rom the mamey 1o which the Group expects. at the teporting date. to recover on seitle the
carrving amount of its assets and liabilities. For this putpuse, the canying amount of investment propety is presumed o be recovered tuough sule

ts, and they relate to mcome taxes levied by the

Defered tax assets and labilities are offset 1f there is a legally enforccable nght 1o offsel current tax habilines and as
same fax authonity on the same taxable entity, o on different lax entities. but they mtend o settle current wx labilities and assels on anet bists or their tax assets and
liahilities will be realised simultaneously

(vii) Inventorics

Inventories consist of penishable and non perishables raw materials and stock m rade which are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value on item by item basis

Cost neludes purchase price. dutics and taxes (other than those subsequently recoserable by the enterprise from the taing authonres), fieight cost and other expenditure
incurred in bringing such inventories Lo their present location and condition

Costs ot mventories i determined on First-In-Fitsl-Out (FIFO) basis. Provision is made for insentortes expited or not likely to be consumed where considered necessars

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinuny course ol business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary o make the sale

(viii) Property. plunt and equipment
Recognition and measurement
The cost ol an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recogmsed s an asset il and only it 1t is probable that [uture econamie benelits associted with the itenwll

ow to the Group and the cost of the iten can be measured reliably

Items of property. plant and cquipment (including capital-work-in progress) we measwred at cost. which meludes capitalised borrow g cost. less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impainment losses

Cost of antem of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including import duties and non-retfundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringmg the item 1o its working conchition for ity mtended use and estimated costs of dismanting and removing the 1tem and

restoring the site on whichat s located

The cost of a self-constructed 1tem of property. plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour. any other costs directly atnbutuble to bringmg the
item To working condition for its intended use. and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the itlem and restonng (he site on which it s located

11 significant parts ol an itent of property. plant and equipment have different useful Tives, then they are accounted o as separate items (major components) of property.

plant and equipment.

Any gam or loss on disposal ol an item of property, plant and cquipment 1s recogmsed in profit on loss

Transition to [nd AS

The cost ol propert. plant and equipment at T April 2022, the Group's date of transition 1o Ind AS. was determined wath reforence o ats carmyving value recognised as per
the previous GAAP (deemed cost). as at the date of tunsition to Ind AS

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitaliscd only of it is probable that the future cconomie benetits assoviated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably All other expenses on existing assets, weluding day -lo-day repan and mattenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are chatged 1o the
Statement ot Profit and Loss lor the pevod during which such expenses are meurred

Depreciation
Depreciation i caleulated vn the cost ol items ol properts. plant and equipment Tess theit estmated residual safues usimg the suaight-line method over Lhew estimated

useful lives. and 1s generally recognised n the stalement of prafit and loss

Useful fife so estimated are in tiue with the uselul lite indivated by Schedule 1 1o the Companies Act 2013, except for plant and machmery. oflice equipment’s and fumiture

and dintures. Depreciation methods. uschul Tives and residual salues are reviewed ar cach reporting date and adjusted it appropriate. Based on techniead svaluation and

< wiven above best represent the petiod over which management expects 1o use these assels,

consequent ads tee. the management befteves that its esiimates ol uselul lives
Depreciation 1s charged on pro rata basis for assets purchase sold durmg the year

The estimated uselul hite of items of property. plant and equipment s mentioned below

Uselul  lives as  per
Estimated Uscful lives{Schedule 1 o the Aet
Assets N s
4% per management. (for companies
incorporated in Indiu)
Plant and Machineny S-103 cars 13 Y ows
Fumituee and Gxtunre 3 Yews 10 Y s
Otlice equipment’s 3-3 Years SYews
Camputer 3Vows 3y euns
Server & networks REGI REI 60 Years
\ chicle 8 Years S Y ews

Leasehold improvements ate amortised over the useful life of assets o1 the lense tamn. whicheser is lowe
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition

An iem ol property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised i de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any wain or loss atising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carry ing amount ot

atement ot Profit and Loss when the asset s de-recogntsed

the asset) is ineluded in the S

Capital work-m-progress includes the cost of property. plant and equipment that are not ready for ther mtended use as at the balunee sheet date

Advance paid for acquisiion construetion of property. plant and equipment which are not reads for their mtended us at cach balance sheet date are disclosed as capital
advances undet other non-current asscts

(ix) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if uny. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the
acquisition of the miangible assets. Identfiable ntangible assels ate recognised when it is probable that futwe economic benefits attibuted Lo the asset will How to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured

Compuler software i» capitalised at the amounts paid 1o acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the penad of its useful lives

The amortsation expense on mlangible assets wilh fimte lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
anuther assels. Amurtisation is caleulated over their estimated usetul fives using the strught-line: method. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are

reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted ¥ appropriate. The estimated usceful life of mlangible asscts is mentioned below

Intangible assets Estimated Useful Life

Computer sollware 3-6 Yuws

Franchisee nights are amortised over the useful hite of the contract Llerm

Transition to [nd AS
The cost of intngible assels at | April 2022 the Group's date of transition 1o Ind AS. was determined with reference to its canyng value recognised as per the previous

GAAP deemed costy, as al the date of transtion to [nd AS

Subsequent expenditure
Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future econonue benefits embodied m the speeilic assel to which it relates the cost of the asset can be
meastred rehably Al other expenditure. including expenditure on interally generated goodsill and brands, is recognised in the Statement ol Profit and Loss as meurned

Derccognition
A ntangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i at the date the recipient obtans control) or when no (lture ccononmie benefits are expected from its use o disposal
Any gam or loss ansmg upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assety s included

the statement ol prolit and loss when the assel is derecognised

(x) Financial instruments

L. Financial Assets:

Classification

On initial recognition the Group classifies Tinancial assets as subsequently measured al amortsed cost fuir value through other comprehensise income or fair salue through
profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contactual cash How characterisues ot the linancial asset

Initial recognition and measurement

AlL (nancial assets excepl ade receivuble that does not conliin ~ignificant finuncing component not measured subsequently at for value through profit or lossy are
recognised inially at farr value plus transaction costs that are attiibutable to the acquisition ol the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assels that require deliveny
of assets wathin a time frame established by regulation or comvention in the market place tregular way tradesy are recognised on the trade date. Le the date that the Group

commils to purchase or sell the uaset

tised cost
A inancial asset” is measared at the amortised cast it hoth the following conditions are met:

Financial assets at amor

11 the assel 1y Reld within a business model whose objective 1s w0 hold assets for collectmg contractual cash lows, and
il contractual terms of the asset give 1ise ot speitied dates o cash flow s that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPD on the principal ameunt outstanding

Alter inwal measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost usimg the effectnve mterest tate (ETRY method. Amortised cost is caleulated by
taking into account any discount or premium and fees or cosis that ave an mtegral part of the EIR. The FIR amurtisation is included in finance meome in the Statement of
Profitand Loss The losses arising from impaimuent are 1ecognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss. This categony generally applies w frade and other tecenvables, louns

and advances cte

Financial assets at fair salue through profit and loss (FVTPL)

IFinanctal assets meluded within the FN TPL categon are measared at fan value with all changes recognized i the Statement ot Prolicor Loss

Derecogninon
A financral asset tor. where applicable, a part of & (inancial asset or part of o« Group ol sinlar financial assets) s primanly derecogised (e remosved rom the Groap's

financial statemenisy when:

- The rights to recene cash Hows from the asset have expired. on
- The Group has anstened s rights to recenve cash lows from the asset or has assumed an lubihity o pay the recened cash lows i il without materal delay w a thud
parts under a*pass-through” anangement: and cithes:

v the Group has unsterred substannally all the rishs and rewards ofthe asset or

i the Group has neither wansterred nor retained substantially all the vishs and rew ards of the as et but has wansterred control ofthe asset
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I'ravel Food Services Private Limited
Nates to the consolidated {inanciaf statements
(U wmownts are i AINR aullions. uiless otherwise sured)

2B. Mulerial secounting pelicies (continued)

Impairment of {nanctal assets and contiact assets

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) madel for measurement and jecognition ol loss allowance on the follow ing
1} Trade recenvables and contract assets

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost other than trade reccivable.

Inn case ol trade receivables and contract assets. the Group fullow s a simphtied approach wherein an amount equal to litetume LCL s measured and recognized as loss
allowance
The Group computes ECL based on a provision matiin. The provision matix is prepared based on histoncally obsened default rates over the expected life of wude

recensables and 1s adjusted for forward-looking estimites

In case of other assets listed as i above. subsequent 1 initial recognition, are as~essed for evidence of impaitment at end of euch 1eporting period basis monitoring of
whether there has been a siunilicant increase in credit nsk, To assess whelher there s a sugmificant increase m credit 1isk. the Group compares the sk of a default
vcewring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of mtial recognition. ft considers available reasonuble and supportise forwuiding-
looking information. 1 the credit risk ol such usaets has not increused signilicantly, un amount equal o 12-month ECL is measuted and recognized as los~ allowance

[nvestment in associates and JV

Associales are those entities in which the Group has significant influence. but not conttol o1 joit control over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture 1s an

arrangement in which the Group lus joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets ol the arrangement. rather than rights to its asscts and labilitics

Tnlerests in associales and the joint venture are accounted [or using the equity method. They are inttially recognised al cost. which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to
ognition. the consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the prafit or loss and OCT of equity accounted mvestees. unul the date en which

muial
signilicant influence or joint control ceases

1. Financial Liabilities

The Group classulies all financial liabilites as subsequently measured at amortised cost except lor financial liabilities measured at Lur value through profit or oss: Such
liabtlities shall be subsequently meusured at fair value with changes m tair salue being vecognised m the Statement of Profitand Loss

Tnital recopnition and measurement:
Financrl lahilities are clussified. at inital teeognition. as finuncial liabilities at fuir salue

All fmancal Liabilities are recognised intialty at fair value and. in the case of loans. borrow ings and payables. net of directly atributable transaction costs. The Group's

financial Labilites melude rade and other payables

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
Aer imtial recognition. interest-beanng loans and burtowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gauns and losses are

recognised in Statement ol Prolit and Loss when the liabiiities are derecognised

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or prenuum on acquisition wnd fees or costs that are an miegral part of the EIR. The BIR amortisation 1

mcluded as (inance costs w the Statement of Pralit and Loss

This category generally applies to iteresti-beanng loans and borrowings, trade payables cte

Derecognition
A lnancial labilily is derecognised when the obligation under the Eability s discharged ot cancelled or expires

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financral assets and financial habilines are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforecable legal night o offset 1he recognised

amounts and there i an mtention e settle on a net bisis, o realise the assets and settle the Tabiites simultaneousty

(i} Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial insttuments at fur value in accordance with the acconnting policies mentioned above Fairvalue is the price that would be recenved o sell an
assct ur paid Lo fransfer a lability nan orderly trunsaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The e value measurement 1s based on the presumplion
that the transaction w sell the asset or tanster the labilny takes place enher:

ay in the prineipal market for the asset ot liability . o1

by in the absence of a prineipal market. m the most advantageous maket for the assetor labiliy

Al assels and habitities for which fair value ts measured or disclosed m the finuncial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarehy thal categanzes mio three
levels. deseribed as follows. the inpus 1o valuation technigues used to measure value: Fhe T value erarehy gives the highest priority 1o quoeted prices mactive markets

Tor identical assets or Labilities (Level | mputs) und the lowest priority 10 unobsen able inputs (Level 3 mputs)

Level I = quoted tunadjusted) market prices mactive markets lor identical asseis or abibies
Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices meluded within Levet U that ae ohservable Tor the assetor Tabiliy . enthier direetly o mdirectls
Level 3 mputs that are unobsenyable for the asset or hability

(xii) Foreiy tions and operations

neurrcency trans
Forcign Currency Transactions:

Transactions nt loreign currencies are banslated o the respective functional currencies of Group companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the zansactions or an
avetage tate 1 the ayerage rate approximates the actual rate at the date ot the ransaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denomnated in foreien curtencies are tanslated mto the functuonal currency at the exchange rate at the teporting date. Non-monelary assels
and habnlines that are measwred at fair value m 4 foreign cwreney are tanslated mtw the Tunctional currency at the exchange rate when the i salue was determuned. Non-
monetivny items that are measured based an histoncal cost m a foreign currener are tanslated at the exehiange rate at the date of the tansaction. Foregn curreney exchange

difTerences are generally recognmised in the Statement ot Profitand Loss
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

Fuorcign Operations:
[he assets and labilitics of foreign operanions (subsidianes
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into INR al the exchange rates at the dates of the trapsactions or an aver

weluding goodwill and fuir value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated mto INR at the ¢xchange

ue rale if

the average rate approximates the actual rate al the date ot the transaction

Forcign currency dilTerences are recognised n OCT and accumulated in the equily tas exchange diffeiences on translating the linancial statements of 4 loreign operation).
excepl to the extent that the excliange ditterences are allocated 1o NCI

(xiii) Provisions (other than employee benelits)

L or construetive) as aresalt of a past evenlat is probable that an outllow ot resourees embodying

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present vbligation {leg
economic benetits will be required to settle the liability and a reliable estimate can be made ol the amount of the lability. Expected future operating losses are not provided
tor

W here the Group expects some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision will be rembursed by another panty. the reimbursement is recogmsed when, and only
when. (s vintually eertamn that reimbursement will be received il the entity setiles the obligation: The reimbursement is tealed as a separate wsset

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cument best estimate. 151t 15 no longer probable that the outflow of tesources would be
required to settle the liabdity, the provision is resersed
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash Mows al a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments ol the tme value o money and risk

specific to the Habiluy. The unwinding of the discount 1s recognised as the tinance cost

(xiv) Leases
AL nception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is. or contains. @ lease. A contiaet 1, o1 contains. a lease it the contract convess the vight ta contial the

use ol an idenufied assel fur a periad of time in exchange tor consideration

The Group as a lessee
The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist ot leases for premises. The Group assesses whether a contiact contains a lease. at inception of a contact. A contract 1s. o
contains, a lease i the contract conveys the right to contiol the use of an wentilied asset tor a penod of time in exchange for consideration

To assess whether a contract conveys the fght to control the use ol an wentified assct. the Group assesses whether
{ 1) the contract involves the usc of an dentitied asscl

(23 the Group has substantially all of the economic benelits from use of the asset through the period ol the lease and
{3) the Group has the right 1o dircet the use of the asset

Al Lhe date ol commencement of the Tease, the Group recognizes o “Right of Use™ ("ROUTY usset and o cortesponding lease hability for all lease anangements in which n
is a lessee. exvept for leases with o term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases For these short-term and low value leases. the Group

cxpense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term ot the lease

recognizes the lease payments as an operatl

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the imtial amount ol the lease liability adjusted for any leuse payvments made at or prior o the
commencement date of the lease plus any mitial direct costs less any lease meentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

mmpairment losses iFany and adjusted for any remeasurement of the fease liab

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-hne basis over the shorter ol the lease term and useful life of the underly g asset

the mterest rate implicit
are remeusured with o

The lease Hability is initially measured at amortized cost al the present vadue ol the Tuture lease payments, [he lease payments are discounted usin
n the lease or. if not readily detenmmable, using the incremental borrowmyg tates m the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabuiit
1 if the Gronp changes is assessnient it whether it will exeretse an extension or i termimation oplion

conesponding adjustment to the related right of use

(xv) Impairment of assets

{a) Financial asscts

\ financial asset not cartied at faic value 1s assessed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is ubjective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired
iMobjective evidence mdicates that a loss event has oceurred aiter the mtial recognition ol the asset, and that the foss event had a newanve efleet on the eshmated e
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated rehably

Ohiective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or definquency by o deblor, resticiunng of an amount due w the Group on terms that the Group
would not otherwise consider, indications that o debtor or issuer will euter bunkruptey. the disappemance ot an active market for a scewity: The entuy considers evidence

ol impaimment (o receivables tor cach specilic assel. Al individually sigmilicant receivables are assessed Tor speciiic impairment

Animpairment loss mrespect of a financial asset measurad at amortized cost is caleulated as the difference between s carrymg amount and the present value ot the
s are recognized mostatement ol profit and loss and are rellected as an allowance

astimated future cash flows discounted ar the asset’s ovgmal effective nterest rate. Los
account against receivables. Taterest on the mpaired dssel conimues to be recognized as income through the unwinding ol the discount. W hen a subsequent event causes

the amount of impaitment loss Lo decrease, the decrease i mpaiment loss 1s reversed thiough statement of profit and loss

< is impaired . o aceordance wah Ind- AS 109 the Group applies

incial assets or aroup of el o

at cach date of Balance sheet swhether a

The Group asscss

cxpected credit loss (FCLY model tor messurement and recogmuion o impanmment loss on the financiab asseis and credit tisk exposure

The Group fallows “simplified approach™ [or recognition ol mipaiment o allowanee on Trade recersables and contract assets: The application ol simphlied approach

does not requine the Group to track changes i credut risk. Rather. it tecognizes impainment fo-< allewanee tised on lictime ECEs ar cach reporting date. right fiom oy

il recogntaon

For tecogrition of impament loss on other tancial assels and vk exposure. the Group determines that whether there his been a significantincrease m the eredit nak
smee nitial recognivon. The Group apptics a staplified approach n caleulating ECLs Therelure. the Group does not tack changes in credit sk but istead recogmses @
Toss allowance based on lifehime ECLs at cach reportmg date: The Group has established a provision mats that s based on 1ty historicad eredit loss expernence, adjusted

tor (orw rd-tookmy factors speeriic to the debtors and the ccononuie environment
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unlesy othervise stated)

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

(b) Non financial assets

Other assets are tested for impainment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
sing impaimment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash intflows which are
asscts (cash-gencrating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment arc reviewed for possible

disposal and value in use. For the purposes of ass
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Groups of
reversal of the impatrment at the end of cach reporting period.

(xvi) Borrowing costs

Bormrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilitics arc recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probablc that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this casc, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrow ings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period

(xvii) Contingent liability and contingent asset

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present liability that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the fiability or the amount of the liability cannot be measured with sufticient reliability. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assct is not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may ncver be realised. However. when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related assct is not a contingent assct and is recognized.

Provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(xviii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows are prepared using the indirect method, whereby profivloss before extraordinary items and tax for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non- cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Cash and cash cquivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statemnent comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

(xix) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
is adjusted for events, other than conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in
resources.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earmings:(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted after considering the etfect of interest and other financing costs or income (net of attributable taxes) associated with dilutive
potential equity shares.

(xvii) Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eain revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
reluting to transactions with other components of the Group). whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating scgments of the Group are
rcported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chicf operating decision maker.

2C. Standards issued but not vet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™ notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time.

The MCA amended the Companices ([ndian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2021 by issuing the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2024, applicable
from April 1. 2024, as below:

i) On 12 Auvgust 2024 Introduction of IND AS 117 - Insurance contracts : IND AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure.

it} On 9 September 2024 Ministry of Corpurate Affairs ('MCA") has amended “Ind AS 116 Leases™ : This amendment has introduced new provisions rclated to leaseback
transactions

/ o
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The Company has evaluated the above amendments and does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on the fr«@zﬂ’{h{:‘-}n
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stuted)

Capital Work-in-progress

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 31 March 2024

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
vear vears
Projects in progress 2009.42 18.48 - - 227.90
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 209.42 18.48 - - 227.90
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
year vears
Projects in progress 62.11 1.56 - 0.48 64.15
Projects temporarily suspended - - 0.66 - 0.66
6211 1.56 0.66 0.48 64.81
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 1 April 2022
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 vears | More than3 Total
year vears
Projects in progress 14,43 0.31 0.53 15.27
Projects temporarily suspended - 0.67 - = 0.67
14.43 0.98 0.53 - 15.94

(d) There is no capital-work-in progress. whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan,
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR muillions. unless otherwise stited!

Investments

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Neon-current
Investment at cost

Unquoted
National saving certificates 0.10 0.10 0,10
0.10 0.10 0.10
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 0.10 0.10 0.10
Loans
funsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-current
Loans to related parties (Refler note 49 and details given below)

Loans given (refer below note (a and b)) 1,057.05 779.29 23647
Intercorporate deposils given (refer below note (¢)) 130.00 87.49 .
Accrued interest receivable 165.66 2243 -
Accrued interest receivable considered doubtful - 59.34 41,01
Less : Loss allowance (reler below nole (d)) - (59.34) (41.01)
1,352.71 889.21 236.47
Current
Loans to rclated parties (Reter note 49 and details given below)
Loans given (refer below nole (a and b)) 83.37 = -
Accrued inlerest receivable 23.20 - 0.03
Accrued interest receivable considered doubtful - 21.30 23,05
Less @ Loss allowance (refer below note (d)) - (21.30) (23.05)
Loans to parties ather than related parties
Loans considered good (refer below note (¢)) - 60 00 -
Loans considered doubtful (refer below note (c)) 60.00 = -
Less : loss allowance (refer below note (¢)) (60.00) - -
106.57 60.00 0.03

a) Loan amount of INR 903.95 millions (31 March 2023: INR 542.82 millions, 1 April 2022 NIL) given to SSP Malaysia Sdn Bhd at 7°6-9.3 % lor capital expenses, working capital
management and other operational expenses. SSP Malavsia Sdn Bhd one short term loan of S1mn is repayable in Dec-24 and the other loans amounting to S9,8 mn is repayable in Jan
2028

b) Intercorporate loan given amount of INR 236,47 millions (31 Match 2023 :INR 236 47 millions. 1 April 2022 : INR 236.47 millions) to Travel Retail Services Private Limited
carrying interest «¢@ 7°0 - 9 3% p.a. for capital cxpenses, working capital management and other operational expenses

¢) Intercorporate deposit amount of INR 130.00 millions(31 March 2023: INR 87 49 millions | April 2022: Nil) given to Travel Retail Services Private Limited at 7.75% p.a (or capital
expenses, working capital management and other operational expenses

d) Provision created m earlier years in respect of interest receivable of INR 80.64 millions has been reversed during the year due to subsequent recovery
¢) Loan amount of INR 60.00 Millions (31 March 2023: INR INR 60.00 Millions: 1 April 2022: INR NIL) given to Mcghalaya Hotels Private Limited ("MHPL"). MHPL shall create a

step down subsidiary of MHPL ("SPV"). The loan amount will get converted inlo cquity holding in the SPV. If MHP'L is unable to incorporate the SPV, the entire loan amount disabused
will be repaid to Company with accrued interest at 9.5% p.a, Since MHPL is unable to incorporate the SPV, the loan amount has been impaired

Other financial asscts
(unsecired considered good unless othervise stated)

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-current
Placed with parties other than related party

Security deposits 528.93 30251 314.97
Less : Loss allowance (refer note 50) - - (10.76)
528.93 30251 304.21

Bank Deposit
Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than twelve months* 46.73 144.08 145.06

From related parties
Sceurity deposits 54,78 10.17 9.07

630.45 456.76 458.34

= Bunk deposit includes

a) deposits amounting to INR 3,12 Millions ( 31 March 2023: INR 107.67 Millions and 01 April 2022: INR 107.67 Millions) with a bank is for the purpose of bank guarantee given to
Airport Authority of India (AAD in accordance with concessionaire agreement and bank guarantec given to Deputy Commissioner of Customs towards EPCG licenscs.

b) deposits umounting to INR 13,65 millions (31 March 2023: INR 14.24 millions and 01 April 2022: INR : t4.36 millions) towards deposits with baoks 2 lien. These deposits are
used for sy it standby letler of credit / bank guarantees /;:LC o
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Ul amounts are in INR midlions, unless otherwise stated)

[ncome tax assets (net)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non current tax ussets (nel of Provision tor taxation) 21433 8923 124 78
214,53 89.23 12478
Other non-current asscts
funsecured convidered good unlesy otherwive stated)
Particulars As at As at As af
E cu 8
31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Prepaid expenses including lease rent 2386 1497 19.60
Capital advances 13282 149.97 4223
Less @ Loss allowance (Refer note 18) (26.89) (42.14) (12.22)
105.93 107.83 30.01
319.79 122.80 149.61
Inventories
U alued at the lower of cost and net realisable yvalie)
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Raw matetials 71.56 90.20 5138
Stock-in-trade 44 41 15.36 2001
Less : lnventory written oft - - (022)
115.97 105.76 71.17
The above inventories have been hypothecated agamst the borrowmgs (Refet note 22)
Investments
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Investments mandatorily aft fair value through profit and loss
Quoted
Investment in Mutual Funds 375570 3.25529 227410
3.755.70 3.255.29 2,274.10
Aggregate book value of quoted investiments 3,755.70 3.255.29 227410
Aggregate market value of quoted inyestments 3,735.70 3,255.29 2,274.10
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Travel Food Scrvices Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Al amounts arc in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at

1 April 2022

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 219.33 389.55 192.99
Cash on hand 41.77 25.85 1327
Cash-in-transit 11l 6.53 3.30

272.21 421.93 211.76
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 942 49 922,43

803.00

942.49 922.43

803.00

Bank balance include TNR 0,36 millions (31 March 2023 INR 0.36 millions and [ April 2022 NIL) as deposits with bank under licn, These deposits are used for issuing lctter of

creditvbank guarantee.

Other financial asscts
(unsecured considered good unless otherise siated)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Current
To parties other than related partics

Securily deposils 197.96 172.98 157.55
Receivable against sales incentive 3.86 5.97 7.10
Other receivables
Considered good 38,15 26.71 285
Considered doubtful 0.50 0.50 16.04
Less @ Loss allowance (0.30) (0.300) (16.04)
38.15 26.71 2.85
Bank Deposit
Deposits with banks with original marurity of more than twelve months 107,69 027 0.36
To related partics (Refer note 49)
Munagement fees receivable 58,07 10.26 031
Recovery of expenses receivable 534 6,20 2231
411.06 222.39 190.48
Other current assets
(unsceured considered good unless othenvise stated)
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 3t March 2023

1 April 2022

Prepaid expenses 67.05 40.11 26.53
Advances to employees 5.26 385 4.75
Advance to supplicrs

Considered good 123.88 99.68 67.70
Considered doubtful 4523 50.71 53.19
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (45.23) (50.71) (53.19)

123.88 99.68 67.70
Balance with Government authoritics
Goods and Services tax 30.68 6,40 1473
Value added tax 037 - -
227.24 150.04 113.71
Movement in provisivns for advances
Advance to suppliers Capital advances

Balance as on 01 April 2022 53.19 12.22

Provision created - 29.92

Provision utilised (2.48) =

Balance as on 31 March 2023 50.71 42,14

Provision created - -

Provision utilised (5.48) (15.25)

Balance as on 31 March 2024 45.23 26.89
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounis are in INR millions. unless otheriise siated)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus As at As at As at
cog s "

Eserves and surp 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
(1) Securities premium 996.70 996 70 110185
(1) Retained eainmys 6.92433 347378 292453
(iii) Foreign Exchange Curreney Translation Reseive 4571 43.54 3213
Total reserves and surplus 7.966.97 6.516.02 4.058.53

(i) Securities premium

Securitics premium is used to record the premium received on issuc of shares. [Uis utilised in accordance with the provisions at the Companics Act, 2013

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 996.70 1.101.83
Adjustment at the beginning of the year on account of reduction of sceurities premium pursuant to the composite Scheme “
of Arrangement and Amalgamation approved by NCLT (Refer note 33) i (1013
Balance at the end of the year 996.70 996.70

(ii) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned (ill date as reduced by dividends ot other disteibutions paid Lo shareholders. Retained earnings includes

re-measurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plans. net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit or losy. Retained eamings is a free reserve available to the
Livenie

As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the veai 5.475.78 2.924.33
Adjustment at the beginning of the yewr on account of reduction of secwilies premium pursuant . 10515
to the composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation approved by NCLT (Refer note 53)
Profit tor the year 2.R76.46 243802
Remeasurement of defined benefit Liability. net of income tax 260 8.08
Dividend * (1.430.29y -
Balance al the end of the year 6.924.55 5475.78

*Dividend declared and paid by the Company durmg the year INR 369,30 per equily share (31 March 2023: NIL)

(i) Other comprehensive income-Forcign Exchange Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR)

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 43.34 3213
Addition during the year 2,17 11.38
Balance at the end of the year 45.71 43.54
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

21 Non-controlling interests

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material NCI, before
any intragroup eliminations.

31 March 2024

Travel Food Services (Delhi

Terminal 3) Private Limited
NCI percentage 40%
Non-current assets 277.13
Current assets 34336
Non-current liabilities (43.14)
Current liabilities (146.50)
Net assets 430.85
Net assets attributable to NCl/accumulated NCI 172.34
Revenue 2.114.39
Profit for the year 298.18
Other comprehensive income 0.60
Total comprehensive income 298.78
Profit allocated to NCI 119.27
OCI allocated to NCI 0.24
Cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities 365.90
Cash flows fromv/ (used in) investment activities (198.61)
Cash flows fromv/ (used in) financing activities (180.34)
(dividends to NCI: INR 56.00 millions )
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (13.05)
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherise stated)

Non-controlling interests (continued)

31 March 2023

Travel Food Services (Delhi
Terminal 3) Private Limited

NCI percentage 40%
Non-current assets 307.96
Current assets 219.90
Non-current liabilities (39.07)
Current liabilities (216.72)
Net assets 272.07
Net assets attributable to NCl/accumulated NCI 108.83
Revenue 1,707.94
Profit for the year 214.44
Other comprehensive income 0.31
Total comprehensive income 214.75
Profit allocated to NCI 85.78
OCI allocated to NCI 0.12
Cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities 258.65
Cash tflows from/ (used in) investment activities (100.99)
Cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities (149.99)
(dividends to NCI: INR 42.00 millions )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7.67

1 April 2022

Travel Food Services (Delhi
Terminal 3) Private Limited

NCI percentage 40%
Non-current assets 318.18
Current assets 93.63
Non-current liabilities (72.18)
Current liabilities (176.66)
Net assets 162.97
Net assets attributable to NCIl/accumulated NCI 65.19




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financizl statements
(Al amounts are in INR nullions. unless othernvive staied)

-~
-

Borrowings

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-Current

Secured
Term Loan
Rupee term loan from bank 120 52 31052 381.63
Less : Current maturities ol term loan (3548) (90 36) (39.15)
65.04 220.16 342.48
Unsecured
Inter corporale deposit 31729 B
(*Loans w 12.23% p.a Interest Rate)
582.33 220,16 342,48

Terms of loans and details of security:

(i) Term loan of INR 120.52 millions (31 March 2023: 275 64 miflions and 01 April 2022: INR 307.86 millions) from Bunk /¢ 8%a - 9% p.a. (31 March 2023: 8"4-9%6 p.a and !
April 2022: 8"4-9% p.a ) for purchase of plant and machinery , equipment  Furniture and Fixtutes/ Other Capex expenditure towards Lounges Transit Hotel located in Bangalore
Awrport. Secuted against first pari-passu charge on all cufrent and movable assets of the Company. Repuyable m remaning 9 equated quarterly instalments(EQD (31 March 2025:
13 EQIand | April 2022: 17 EQI)

(i) Term loan of NIL (31 March 2023: INR 34.62 millions and 01 April 2022: INR 73.77 millions) pertaining to one of subsidiary company from Bank ar 7.95% p.u. (31 March
2023: 7.95% p.a and 1 Apiil 2022: 8.20% p.a.) repayable m NIL (31 March 2023: m 3 quartets and | April 2022: in 6 Quarterly) equal instalments of INR 9.63 Millions from March
2023 till September 2023 (Previous Year INR 9.65 Millions from June 2022 to till June 2023 ) and balance loan amount as part of December 2023 instalment. Secured against a)
Exclusive charge on the curtent assets. b) Escrow ot receivables. ¢) Certain equity shares of subsidiary company

23 Leases liabilities

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non current

Leasc liabilities (refer note 32) 2.658.01 2.862.71 349231
2.658.61 2.862.71 3.492.31
24 Other linancial liabilities
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-current

Seeurily deposils 101 68 87.36 91.64
101.68 87.36 91.64
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the c lidated fi ial st: s

25

26

(All amounts are in INR millions. unless othervise stated)

Provisions
As at As at As at
31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current
Pravision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 45) 66.62 54.61 54.76
Other Provision:
Provision for decommissioning costs (Refer note 32(b)) 4.40 4.04 4.26
71.02 58.65 59.02
Other non-current liabilities
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current
Accrued income on security deposits 1.66 3.56 5.41
Deferred [ncome 3.89 5.75 7.78
5.55 9.31 13.19
As at As at As at

27 Borrowings

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Current
From Bank
Secured
Bank Overdraft # . B 0:02
Term Loan (Refer note 22) 55.48 90.36 39.15
55.48 90.36 39.19
# Overdraft facility carried interest of 8%-9% p.a. which was fully repaid by the Company in previous year.
28 Leases
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Lease liabilities (Refer note 52) 864.32 656.35 522.72
864.32 656.35 522.72
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the lidated financial sta
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other financial liabilities

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Security deposits 22.01 26.96 14.54
Employee benefits payables 311.16 250.98 193.69
From related parties
Reimbursement of expenses 47.57 25.18 22.92
Other payables 8.94 0.00 (0.00)
Payable for purchase of Property Plant and Equipment
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20.51 3.84 0.77
Total outstanding dues of capital creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 101.37 42.93 93.51
511.56 349.89 325.43
Other current liabilities
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 April 2022

To parties other than related parties

Unearned and deferred revenue 11.43 33.34 64.70
Advance from customers 3.87 25.89 6.41
Liability towards corporate social responsibility 16.51 12.89 -
Statutory liabilities* 163.30 141.16 65.15
195.11 213.28 136.26
*Statutory dues payables
- Tax deducted at source 60.67 36.95 27.60
- Goods and Services Tax 63.37 71.31 21.77
- Value Added Tax/Sales tax 11.80 11.09 3.41
- Provident fund 24.40 18.61 10.47
- Professional Tax 0.34 0.40 0.28
- Employee state insurance 2.46 2.75 1.62
- Labour welfare fund 0.26 0.05 -
163.30 141.16 65.15
Provisions
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 45)
Liability for compensated absences

Other Provision:
Provision for Disputed Rentals (Refer note (a) below )
Provision for decommissioning costs (Refer note (b) below )

a) Provision for disputed rentals

28.08 19.19 9.90
27.93 20.47 8.28
200.32 200.32 200.32
0.03 0.01 0.01
256.36 239.99 218.51

During the FY 2019-20, the Company made a provision of INR 216.52 millions for disputed concession fees demanded by the Airport Authority of India (AAT) in respect of the space
occupied for outlets (Transit QSR) at Goa Airport. Subsequently during FY 2020-21 AAI had issued credit notes for additional amount of INR 12.13 Millions. Out of the aggregate

demand of INR 228.65 millions, the Company paid INR 28.33 millions to AAI during FY 2020-21 resulting to closing provision of INR 200.32 millions.

During the FY 2023-24 arbitrator has passed the order in favour of the Company, stating that no concession fee was payable by the Company. AAI has filed an appeal before the Hon.
Delhi High Court under Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 challenging the award and this is currently pending with Hon. High Court for which next hearing is

scheduled on 7 October 2024.

b) Provision for decommissioning costs

Represents the present value of the management's best estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the outlets located at Indira Gandhi International

Airport, New Delhi.

Movement in other provisions

Disputed Rental Decommissioning
costs
Balance at 1 April 2022 200.32 4.27
Provisions made/used during the year - (0.22)
Balance at 31 March 2023 200.32 4.05
Provisions made/used during the year - 0.38
Balance at 31 March 2024 200.32 443
Current tax liabilities
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 36.39 100.54 35.06
36.39 100.54 35.06
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a)

b)
(i)

(i)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of products and services

Other operating revenues
Sales - Miscellaneous Services
Total of revenue from operations(A+B)

13,953.19 10,660.96
10.03 10.54
13,963.22 10.671.50

Major products and service lines

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Lounge services

Travel QSR

Management and other services

6,234.88 4,924.22
7.328.42 5,391.39

389.89 345.35
13.953.19 10,660.96

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
Primary geographical markets

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Domestic
Foreign
g

13.854.33
98.86

10.601.56
59.40

Timing of revenue recognition

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Services transterred at a point in time 13,563.30 10.315.61
Services transterred over time 389.89 345.35
Revenue from contracts with customers 13.953.19 10,660.96

Central B Ying ang
Rorih € Wing,
Mesco 1T P,

Hesee Camer,
Wesam Express Mighway,
Goregaen (Egsll,




34

)

d)

€)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Revenue from operations

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue as per contracted price

Sale of products and services 13,963.22 10,671.50
Total Revenue from contract with customers 13,963.22 10,671.50
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Receivables, which are included in 'trade receivables' 1.050.19 1,139.56 480.53
Contract assets - - ;
Contract liabilities 19.19 64.98 78.89

The contract liabilities primarily related to the advance consideration received from customer for which revenue is recognised at a point in

time.

The amount of INR 64.98 millions included in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2023 has been recognised as revenue during the year ended

31 March 2024.

The amount of INR 78.89 millions included in contract labilities as at 1 April 2022 has been recognised as revenue during the year ended

31 March 2023.

Revenues from two customers of the Group’s represented approximately INR 4473.94 millions (31 March 2023: INR 3,453.37 millions) of

the Group’s total revenues.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other income

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income under the effective interest method on :

- Bank deposit

- Loans and deposits

- Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income on income tax refund

Net gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations

Net gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Gain on termination of lease arrangement (Refer note 60)

Net gain on sale of current investments

Net change in fair value of financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVTPL

Doubttul debts/advance written back

Reversal of provision towards interest receivables (Refer note 49)
Gain arising on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Sale of duty scrips

Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year
Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Food and beverages

Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening inventory
Less: Closing inventory

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus*

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Expenses related to compensated absences
Gratuity (Refer note 45)

Staff welfare expenses

77.86 56.42
88.96 42.86
36.82 31.65

2.92 3.07
1154 9.90
3.30 3.69
49.07 -
256.40 67.80
- 74.65
18.03 32.05
80.64 0.01
1.86 1.90
. 5.09
32.30 35.23
659.70 364.32
90.20 51.38
2,592.49 1,969.73
(71.56) (90.20)
2,611.15 1,930.91
265.06 168.93
265.06 168.93
15.56 2001
(44.41) (15.56)
(28.85) 4.45
1.920.91 1.319.26
151.05 108.74
8.43 7.52
31.09 26.80
187.05 [31.38
2.298.53 1.593.70

*net of reimbursements received from Travel QSR operators of INR 15.91 millions( 31 March 2023: INR 14,19

millions)
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- Term loan 21.87 32.26
- Loans 26.03 7.93
- Security deposits 2.97 7.08
Interest on dues to micro and small enterprises 56.84 28.82
Interest on dues to others 4.46 1.73
Interest on taxes 10.06 7.97
Interest expense on lease liabilities 394.68 392,27
516.91 478.06
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 313.04 220.10
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 792.07 605.43
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5) 3.23 5.55
1,108.34 831.08
Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power and fuel* 334.37 277.62
Occupancy cost* 3,128.67 2,173.31
Repairs and maintenance 324.94 240.07
Administrative and office expenses 105.87 70.99
Rates and taxes 88.50 38.86
House keeping and consumables* 32.57 20.43
Travelling and conveyance 52.11 33.83
Legal and professional charges 91.83 74.97
Payment to auditors 30.06 4.59
Advertisement and sales promotion 59.99 34.05
Net change in fair value of financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVTPL 7.49 -
Impaltinent Joss o Anunelal and non-fngnelal assers 35.64 68.90
Corporate social responsibility expenses 20.98 13.13
Royalty/ franchisee expenses 164.39 123.10
Impairment on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 60) 46.83 0.91
Miscellaneous expenses* 147.83 60.77
4.696.07 3.235.53

*net of reimbursements received from food and beverage outlet operators of INR 10.63 millions( 31 March 2023: INR

9.54 millions)




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated tinancial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othervwise stated)

Investments accounted for using the equity method

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Interest in joint venture

GMR Hospitality Limited* 93.23 21.73
1,05,30,000 (31 March 2023:24,30,000, 01 April 2022: N1L) cquity shares of face value of INR 10 each,

fully paid up

Interests in associates

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

15.195,012 (31 March 2023: 15.195,012, 01 April 2022: 15,195,012) equity shares of face value of INR

10 each, fully paid-up 2,087.14 1,359.47 783,41

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
6,231,262 (31 March 2023: 6,231,262, 01 April 2022: 6,231,262) equity shares of face value RM. | cach,
fully paid up ~ = 96.00

Tabemono True Aromas Private Limited
24,990 (31 March 2023: Nil, 01 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of face value of INR 10 cach, fully paid-

up 0.24 . s
2,087.38 1.359.47 879.41
2,180.61 1,381.19 879.41

Joint venture

GMR Hospitality Limited

GMR Hospitality Limited is a joint venture in which the Group has joint control and a 30% ownership intercst. The Company is primarily engaged in the
business of managing and developing food and beverage outlets at the Goa und Hyderabad Airports. GMR Hospitality Limited is not publicly listed.

The following table reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in GMR Hospitality Limited.

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Percentage ownership interest 30% 30% .
Non-current assets 350,13 66.94 -
Current assets 231.77 50.86

(including cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2024: INR 219.34 millions and 31 March 2023: INR 44.79

millions)

Non-current liabilitics
(including non-current financial liabilities excluding trade and other payables and provisions 31 March
2024: INR 131,08 millions and 31 March 2023: NIL) (133.7h) (0.49) -

Current liabilities
(inctuding current financial liabilitics excluding trade and other payables and provisions 31 March 2024:

INR 95.34 millions and 31 March 2023: [NR 20.74 millions) (137.42) (4-4.88)

Net assets (100%) 310.77 72.43 -
Group’s share of net assets (30%0) 93.23 21,73 -
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 93.23 21.73 -
Revenue 32037 45.09

Depreciation and amortisation 11.64 0.75

Interest expense 11.63 0.00

Income tax expense (13.24) (2.88)

Profit for the year (31.53) (8.57)

Other comprehensive income (0.13) =

Total Comprehensive income (100%) (31.66) (8.57)

Group’s share of profit (30%) (9.46) 2.57)

Group’s share of other comprehensive income (30%) (0.04)

Group’s share of Total comprehensive income (30%) (9.50)

* The Company subscribed GMR Hospitality Limited 5,70,000 equity shares of INR 10 cach for an aggregate consideration of INR 3
Resolution dated 19 October 2023 and 75,30,000 equity shares of INR 10 each for an aggregate consideration of INR 75.30 myj
dated 1 December 2023,
e,
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, wnless othervise stated)

The following table reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in MALS.

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Percentage ownership interest 44.40% 44.40% 44.40%
Non-current assets 28.74 154.33 2,199.48
Currcent asscts 5,083.74 3.282.59 2.471.25
Non-current liabilities (10.08) 9.2 (1,777.31)
Current liabilities (401.63) (365.85) (1,128.99)
Net assets (100%) 4,700.77 3,061.86 1,764.43
Group’s share of net asscts (44.40%) 2,087.14 1,359.47 783.41
Carrying amount of interest in associate 2,087.14 1,359.47 783.41
Revenue 3,707.85 2,735.93
Profit from continuing operations (100%) 1,638.29 1,297.76
Other comprehensive income (100%) 0.63 (0.33)
Total comprehensive income (100%) 1,638.92 1,297.43
727.68 576.06

Group’s share of total comprehensive income (44.40%)
Associates (continued)

2) Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

The company manages Lounge services at Malaysia Airport. Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd is not publicly listed.

The following table reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Percentage ownership interest 49.90% 49.90% 49.90%
Non-current asscts 2,157.02 1,420.75 144,55
Current assets 436.51 448.52 107.72
Non-current liabilities (2,365.12) (1,591.46) (66.82)
Current liabilities (1.109.02) (433.33) (64.80)
Net assets (100%) (880.61) (155.52) 120.65
Group’s share of net assets (49.90%) (439.42) (77.60) 60.20
Goodwill - - 35.80
Share of losses 439.42 77.60
Carrying amount of interest in associate - - 96.00
Revenuce 2,170.17 448.56
Profit from continuing operations (100%) (686.14) (274.46)
Other comprehensive income (100%) (38.94) (1.74)
Total comprehensive income (100%) (725.08) (276.20)
Total comprehensive income (49.90%) (361.81) (137.82)
Loss amount not considered for equity accounting 361.81 41.82
Group’s share of total comprehensive income (49.90%) - (96.00)
Unrecognised share of losses tor current and earlier year 403.63 41.82

As at 31 March 2024, loan given by the Group remained outstanding of INR 903.95 millions (31 March 2023: INR 542,82 millions) to Select Service Partner

Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

The Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates. The following table analyses, in aggregate, the camrying amount and share of

profit and OCI of these associates

As at

As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Carrving amount of interests in associates
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Income tax

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense

Current year

Changes in estimates related to prior years

Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Refer note 9)

Deferred tax expense

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

Tax (benefit) (Refer note 9)

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

Profit before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.168%

Tax effect of

Non-deductible expenses

Tax incentives

On undistributed profit of subsidiary
Earlier year tax adjustment (net)
Difference in short term capital gain tax rate and normal tax

rate
Others

Total tax expense

025.88 719.53
8.79 (12.76)

934.67 706.77

(41.19) 51.42

893.48 758.19
(0.76) (3.24)
(0.76) (3.24)

3,155.71 2,793.15

794.23 702.98
54.14 29.26
(3.08) (2.36)
39.81 27.54
8.79 432
(0.55) (0.16)
0.15 (3.40)
893.48 758.19
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a)

b)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-current

Gratuity 66.62 54.61 54.76
66.62 54.61 54.76

Current
Gratuity 28.08 19.19 9.90
Liability for compensated absences 27.93 20.47 8.28
56.01 39.66 18.18
122.63 94.27 72.94

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

Certain entities of the Group has a defined benefit plan for gratuity which provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees on
departure i.e. at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years
of service except death while in employment. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at last drawn eligible monthly salary for each completed year of service. Said entities provides for the liability in its books of
accounts based on an actuarial valuation carried out by a qualified independent actuary.

The Gratuity scheme is not funded.

Benefit on normal retirement (i.e. 60 vears): as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with Limit of INR 2.00
millions.

Benefit on death in service : Same as normal retirement benefit except that no vesting conditions apply.

Based on the actuarial valuation report obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the
amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

Non-current 66.62 54.61 54.76
Current 28.08 19.19 9.90
Total 94.70 73.80 64.66 |

The above defined benelit plan exposes following risks:

Interest rate risk:

The defined benefit liability calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit liability
will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk:
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit liability

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit liability is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
salary increase. discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the
retirement benetit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Employee benefits plan (continued)

Movement of defined benefit liability

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 73.80 64.65
Adjustment to opening balance - -
Current service cost 2391 23.04
[nterest cost 4.75 3.68
Transfer in liability on transfer of employees 2.50 0.93
Transfer out liability on transter of employees (2.44) (0.99)
Benefits paid (4.08) (6.64)
Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income
- demographic assumption changes (1.03) (8.44)
- experience adjustments (3:13) 0.05
- changes in financial assumptions 0.43 (2.48)
Balance at the end of the year 94.70 73.80
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost 23.91 23.04
Interest cost 4.75 3.68
28.66 26.72
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gain arising during the year (3.73) (10.87)
(3.73) (10.87)
Defined benefit liability
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Actuarial assumptions

Mortality

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation

Expected average remaining service {vears)

Employee Attrition Rate(Past Service (PS)):
RL 1-4

RL 5 and Below

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit liability (years)

TALM (2012-2014) Ult

6.88%-6.95%
5.50%-8.00%
0.41-2.57

PS: 0to42:
0%-27"
PS:0to42:
38%0-72%

1.34 10 4.20

7.02%-7.2%
5.50%-8.00%
1.06-2.59

PS: 0042 :
0%-28%
PS: 0to42
40%-58%0
3.27t05.99

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (TALM) (2012-14) rates.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otheriise stated)

Employee benefits plan (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Increase Decrease [ncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 67.41 71.58 51.63 55.07 46.11 50.67
Future salary growth rate (1% movement) 70.83 68.04 54.52 52.08 50.22 46.46

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumpltions constant. In practice. this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability

recognised in the balance sheet.

Expected benefit payments
Undiscounted amount of expected benefit payments for next 10 years are as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Expected Outgo First 30.01 19.05 9.50
Expected Outgo Second 18.41 14.84 9.35
Expected Outgo Third 16.29 1391 12.16
Expected Outgo Fourth 7.18 6.71 6.32
Expected Outgo Fifth 5.20 5.10 5.96
Expected Outgo Six to Ten years 2231 20.51 24.66
Defined contribution plans
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 151.05 108.74
151.05 108.74
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(A)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othenwise stuted)

Related parties

List of Related Parties

Parties where control exists :
Holding Company
SNVK Hospitality & Management Pvt Ltd

Names of investors having substantial voting power of reporting enterprise:
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited

Joint venture
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022)

Associates

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd (w.e.f. 05 August 2021)

Tabemono True Aromas Private Limited (w.e.f. 21 August 2023)

Gourmet Foods LLC (Associate of subsidiary company - Travel Food Services Global Private Limited)

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Varun Kapur - Director
Karan Kapur - Director

Entities in which Key Management Personnel are having significant influence/ control
Travel Food Works Private Limited

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Global Kitchens (KG) LLP

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

Global Kitchens F&B LLP

The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Everest Caterers LLP

Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP

SSP Financing UK Limited

Sclect Service Partner UK Limited




49
49

(B)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stuted)

Related parties

Related parties (continued)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Management services

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 30.01 25.27
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 43.24 9.06
Sub concessionaire fees

Travel Retail Services Private Limited 22.85 23.97
Interest income

Sclect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 59.90 21.30
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 29.06 21.55
Lease payments

Everest Caterers LLP 31.46 33.59
Travel Food Works Private Limited 6.45 =
Purchase of goods

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 1.10 3.59
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 65.03 16.88
Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP 26.88 -
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited = 0.74
Revenue from operations

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 0.01 0.58
GMR Hospitality Limited - 0.78
Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP - 0.16
Travel Retail Services Private Limited [.22 -
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 0.43 1.47
GMR Hospitality Limited 10.93 0.01
Investment in Joint Venture
GMR Hospitality Limited 81.00 24.30
Investment in Associate
Tabemono True Aromas Private Limited 0.25 -
Inter-corporate deposit given
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 42.50 87.50
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(41l amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Related parties
Related parties (continued)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Unsecured loan given
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Provision for doubtful interest receivable
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Provision for doubtful interest receivable written back

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Sundry balances written off
Global Kitchens Private Limited
Global Kitchens (KG) LLP

Recovery of expenses

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Mumbai Airport Lounge Scrvices Privatc Limited
GMR Hospitality Limited

Travel Food Works Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses

Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Select Service Partner UK Limited

Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

SSP Financing UK Limited

Everest Caterers LLP

Varun Kapur

The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited
GMR Hospitality Limited

Royalty/ franchisee expense
Dcluxc Catercrs Private Limited
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited

Security deposit given

Travel Retail Services Private Limited
Travel Food Works Private Limited
Everest Caterers LLP

Guarantees given on behalf of companies
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

357.10

80.64

0.92
0.87
0.66
1.57

4.88
0.84
0.00
5.51

0.16
0.23
1.15

0.04

6.65

0.70
11.00
50.00

70.00

534.78

18.32

1.75
0.30

15.02

1.24

22.47

3.40

1.93

1.04

2.06

0.30

2.04
0.03

0.01
3.43

205.00
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(41l amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Related parties

Related parties (continued)
Balances with related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Deposits given
Everest Caterers LLP
Travel Food Works Private Limited

Loan given
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Travel Retail Scrvices Private Limited

Interest receivable on loan

Travel Retail Services Private Limited
Global Kitchens Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Inter-company deposit given
Travel Retail Scrvices Private Limited

Provision for doubtful interest receivable
Travel Retail Scrvices Private Limited
Global Kitchens Private Limited

Trade Receivables

Travel Retail Services Private Limited
Global Kitchens F&B LLP

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

GMR Hospitality Limited

Trade Payables

Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP
Travel Retail Scrvices Private Limited
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Management fees receivable
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

61.30
11.00

904.06
236.46

107.86

81.00

130.00

0.47
14.56
6.64

8.36
49.72

11.30

542.84
236.46

81.71

21.36

87.50

80.64

22.40
0.23

1.57

0.01

10.26

11.30

236.46

62.32
1.75

62.32
L.75

0.23
1.19

0.31




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(41l amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

49 Related parties
49 Related parties (continued)
(C) Balances with related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Recovery of expenses

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

SSP Financing UK Limited

GMR Hospitality Limited

Travel Food Works Private Limited

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

Global Kitchens (KG) LLP

The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Everest Caterers LLP

SNVK Hospitality & Management Pvt Ltd
Global Kitchens F&B LLP

Recovery of expenses payable

Everest Caterers LLP

SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited

SSP Financing UK Limited

Select Service Partner UK Limited

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited

Guarantees given on behalf of Companies
Travel Retail Services Private Limited
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

0.57
1.24
1.83

1.39

0.07
0.01
0.00
0.23

0.06
11.77
2.58
0.01
2.07
5.18

70.00

0.01
1.24
1.83
2.10
0.01
0.02
0.01
0.04

0.80
0.07
0.01
0.06

0.06
1161
2.34

3.14

205.00

0.71
0.08
1.83

16.88
1.26

0.30
0.78
0.42

0.06

3.57
0.06
11.46
234

3.50

205.00
375.00

(D) Transactions cntered into with related parties during the year were in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length basis. All the balances of related

parties are unsecured.

There are no transactions with KMP during the ycar cnded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 other than discloscd above.
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(iii)

(iv)

(\]

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 116

Adoption and transition to Ind AS

With effect from 1 April 2022, the group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” to its leases using the on a lease-by-lease basis with the option to measure the right-of-
use asset as if the Standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application;

The Group has applied this standard to lcaschold premises and concession contracts cte. to cvaluate whether these contracts contains leasc or not. Bascd on
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the Group has evaluated such arrangements to be leases. Under this standard, all lease contracts,
with limited exceptions, are recognised in the financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities.

When measuring lease liabilities, the weighted average discount rate used to calculate the lease liability under Ind AS 116 was 10%-11.5%

The Group recognises a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application.

The Group has elected to apply the following practical expedients available under Ind AS 116:

Short term leases - The Group has applied the practical expedient to classify leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application of Ind AS 116 as short-term leases.

Low value leases - As part of transition, the Group has availed the practical expedient of not to apply the recognition requirements of Ind AS 116 to low
value leases for recognition of assets and liabilities related to leases. There are no low value leases.

Payments recognised as an expense

Particulars For the year ended ' the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

The expense relating to variable lease payments and short term not included in the measurement of lease 3,128.67 2,173.31

liabilitics

Total 3,128.67 2,173.31

Movement in lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance as at beginning of the year 3,519.06 4,015.05
Additions 805.89 9.65
Interest on lease liabilities accrued during the year 394.68 392.27
Payment/adjustment of lease liabilities (1,196.70) (897.91)
Balance as at end of the year 3,522.93 3,519.06
Current 864.32 656.35
Non-current 2,658.61 2,862.71
Contractual Maturities of Lease Liabilities
The details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities for leases on an undiscounted basis are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Less than onc ycar 1,189.41 1,182.44 913.54
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,972.17 4,007.37 4,932.61
More than five years 143.67 297.88 555.07
Total undiscounted lease payments 4,305.25 5,487.69 6,401.22
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the lidated i ial

14 amownts ave in INR millions_unless otherwise stated)

55 List of subsidiaries

See accounting policy m Note 1. 2A and 2B
Set out below 1s a list of subsidiaries of the Group

Name of Subsidiary

Principal place of|
business and place

Proportion of ownership interests

ol incorporation

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
o Befhi 13 Privae Lbnited Inikia 60.00%% 60,00%, 60 007,
T 100 90% 100002 NA
Cilabal Private Limited Mbauribius 100 00% 100,002, 100 00°
arl Setvices Prvate Lanfed (DR TS TR&R Works) Frvate Limiteid) Iz 100 00% 100.00%, 100 00%5
iy Sepvices Privase Lt India 100.00% NA NA
*The Group has a commitment 1o scll 75%5 of the stake in Semolina Kitchens Private Limited
Additional information pursuant to paragraph 12 3 of Division Il of Schedule IIT o the Companics Act. 2013- ‘General Instructions for the preparation of lidated financial * of Division |1 of Schedule HI

As on 31 March 2024

Net assets (total assets minus total

liabilities)

Share in profit or loss

Share in other comprehensive income

Share in tota] com prehensive income

Particulars As % of AS % of fl\:'/tn ;f " Alsd"/: :ll" -
i 0!
consalidated net Amount consolidated Amount R Amount Mgl N A Amount
comprehensive comprchensive
asscls profit or loss o
income income
Parent
Travel Food Seryices Privale Limiled 7471% 6.087 88 7241% 2,157 76 36.75% 285 2% 216061
ies-(parent’s share)

Travel Food Service Delhi T3 Private Lumited 529% 430 85 6 00% 178.91 713% 036 6% 179 26
Semohing Kichens Provate Lmited -1 1% (90 53) -234% (69 72) 0.00% -2% (69.72)
Travel Food Services Global Private Limiled 187% 15264 051% 1527 43 34% 217 1% 1745
Q‘mt‘ Lifestyle and Technology Services Private 0.00% 005 0.00% (0.05) 0.00% = 0% (005)
Limited
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited o

- o 3 -0.05% 0.00% = -0.05%
(Fk.a. TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) 0:02 g o0 (47 5% (L4m
Non-controlling inlerests in all subsidiaries 1 76% 143 09 347% 10335 4.75% 024 3% 103 59
Assoclates (Investment as per equity method)
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 2561% 2.087 t4 24 42% 727 64 0.77% 004 24% 727 6%
Sclect Senvice Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 000°% - 0.00% 0.00% 0%
Select Service Partner Malaysia Serai Sdn Bhd
Subsidiary company - Select Service Partner 0.00% 0.00% - 0 00% 0%
Malavsia Sdn Bhd
Tabemono True Aromas Private Limited 000% 024 000% 0.01) 0.00% 0% oon
Gounnet Foods L L.C 0.00% - 000% . 0.00% - 0% -
Joint Venture (investment as per the equity
method)
GMR llospitality Limiled 114% 93,23 -0.32%% (9.46) -0.78% (0.04) 0% (9 50)
Fliminations -9 26% (754.46) 411% (122.43) - 060} 0% (123 03)
‘Tntal 100.00% 8.148.76 100.00% 2.979.79 111.96% 5.02 2.984.81




I'ravel Foud Services Private Limited
Notes to the ¢ idated financial st ts

i amonnts are in INR andltons anle s othern e stated)

55 List of subsidiaries
Additonal information pursiant to pis

As on 3T March 2023

aplt 12 3 of Division 1T of Schedule 111 to the Compames Act, 2013 *General Instiuctions for the prepuation ol sonsolidated financial statements” of D sion 11 ot Schedule 111

Nel assets {total assets

minus total

Share in prolil or loss

Share in other comprehensive income

Share in total comprehensive income

liabilitics)
As Ya of As Y of
farticufars it ey Ili:]d/ln('; other on nlisd |: (:i total
Consdy AL '] cons ite i
consolidated net Amount consolidated \mounl con B l, ¢ Amount ¢ . \mounl
assels Srolit or loss comprehensiye comprehensive
- e i income income
Parcnt
Travel Foud Serviees Private Limited Sih Sty Tho . 1933 83 S 822 Thoivdty Lyd2.07
Subsidliaries - (parent's share)
fravel tood Serviee Delhi 13 Private Linmied Jinr, 27208 5124 128 67 Q07" 00l SOK 128 68
Semolma Kitchens Prvate Limited Al 31 (20 81) AL87*u (g i1 1 B00% - 0 RO"W 121 81y
Travel Food Services Global Private Dimited 2240 4R 75 U427 {11 S8 120 1138 0867 2190
r}s Yamuna Aiport Scivices Private Lomied e a1 mditre. T . B
(Lka TS (R&R Work~) Private Limuted)
Non-controlling mierests mall subsiiances 434 9550 298%y "6 0647 012 296" T4R8
Associates (Inyestment as per equity method)
NMumban Airport Lounge Serviees Private Lamited 20 4470 1.35947 2291 1707 (LKA 22.75%, 70y
Scleet Service Partier Malaysin Sdn Bhd 000" -3 R0 (9551} <2501 11149y -3 79 196 111
Tabemono True Atomas Private Linuted 000" 000" 000", - 0.00"
Ciourmet Foods LL C 000" - 000" 000", - 0.00°
Joint Venture (investment as per the equity
meihod)
GMR Hospitahty Lumited 033 2173 <0 1. 1257 01"y A 12:37)
Tl Q78" (38413 =3 01" e} Wi, TR 190 81y
Tutal LS 6.650.24 LA 312 80 [LECRT 19.59 2,532.39

As at | April 2022

Particulars Net assets (total assels minus total
liahilities)
As Yo ol
consolidated net Amount
assets

Parent
Travel Food Services Prsate Limied 82.10°s 341349
Subsidiaries - (parent’s sharc)
Travel Food Service Dethr T3 Prvate Limited 30 162 03
Semohna Kitchens Privale Lunied 000% -
Travel Food Services Global Pinate Linmted 331% 13824
Qmi 1 :lestyle and Technology Seivices Pinate

- 000"
Limited
TFS Yamuna Awpatt Seryices Prvate Limited b 010
(Fka TFS (R&R Works) Private Lumited)
Non-controllutg mterests i all subsidiaries ] 6280
Assnciates (Inyestment as per equity methnd)
Mumbw \wport Lounge Services Private Lumted I8 83 X3
Scieet Service Pintner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 135% 60.20
Tabemono True Aromas Private Limeted [V
Gourmet Foods L LU 1ou*.
Joint ¥ enture (investment as per the equity e
method)
GMR Hospialay Limited 000t
STTEERTTITN B RR (463 14
Tutal LR 0 % RALIAR]
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Note to March 2023 IGAAP Adjustment on March 2023 Ind AS
first time Amounts transition to Ind AS Amounts
adoption

Income

Revenue from operations h 10.716.59 (45.09) 10,671.50
Other income h 332.65 31.66 364.32
Total income 11,049.24 (13.43) 11,035.82
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed h 1.944.35 (13.44) 1.930.91
Purchasc of stock-in-trade 168.93 - 168.93
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade 4.45 - 4.45
Employee benefits expenses h 1,623.01 (29.31) 1,593.70
Finance costs h 85.79 392.26 478.06
Depreciation and amortisation h 226.39 604.70 831.08
Other expenses h 4.223.44 (987.91) 3.235.53
Total expenses 8.276.36 (33.70) 8.242.66
Profit before tax 2,772.89 20.27 2,793.16
Tax expense: h

Current tax 706.78 (0.01) 706.77
Deferred tax (186.53) 237.95 51.42
Total tax expense 520.25 237.94 758.18
Profit for the year 2,252.64 (217.67) 2,034.97
Share of profit of associates and joint venture, net of tax 284.57 193.25 477.82
Other comprehensive income (OCl)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability - 1177 11.77
Incomc tax rclating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or - (3.24) (3.24)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 8.53 8.53
Share of OCI of associates and joint venture, net of tax - (0.33) (0.33)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,537.21 (16.22) 2,520.99
Reconciliation of statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2023
Previous GAAP Adjustment on Ind AS
transition to Ind AS

Net cash flow from opcrating activitics 2,429.55 799.56 3,229.11
Net cash flow from investing activities (2,061.54) 93.84 (1,967.70)
Net cash flow from financing activities (168.26) (883.00) {1,051.26)
Netinerease/(decrense) in eash and cash equivalents 199,75 10.11 210.16
Cash and cash equivalent as at 1 April 2022 235.63 (23.85) 211.78
Exchange differences ontranslating financial statements of foreign operations - - o
Cash and cash equivalent as at 1 March 2023 435.37 (13.44) 421.93
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated {inancial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othermvise stuted)

56 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)

a

Lease arrangement

Under Previous GAAP. Iessce classificd a lcase as operating or finance lcase based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset. Operating leases were expensed in the statement of profit and loss. Effective 1 April 2022, the Group
adopted Ind AS 116 — Leases which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The Group adopted
Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective method. The cumulative adjustment on application of this Standard has been adjusted to retained eamnings as at |
April 2022.

In terms of the practical expedient on initial application permitted by Ind AS 116. the Group has applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets
and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term and leases of low value assets on the date of initial application.

Pursuant to application of Ind AS 116, for operating leases other than those for which the Group has opted for short-term leases and low value assets
exemption. tight-of-use assets and lease liabilities is recognised. Right-of-use asset is amortised over the lease term or useful life of the leased assets.
whichever is lower and lease liabilities is subsequently measured at amortised cost and interest expense is recognised.

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease modification, as per MCA notification dated 24
July 2020 on Ind AS 116 for all rent concessions which are granted due to COVID - 19 pandemic. As per requirements of MCA notification.
rent concessions confirmed for the year ended 31 March 2022 of INR 174.79 millions have been considered as other income and included in retained

eamings as at | April 2022

Year ended

Statement of profit and loss 31 March 2023
Depreciation and amortisation expense 605.43
Finance costs 39227
Interest income (31.65)
Rent (897.91)
Adjustment before income tax 68.14
Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Right-otf-use assets 2.545.86 3.097.25
Lcasc liabilitics (3,519.06) (4.015.03)
Related tax effect 248.75 23487
Adjustment to retained earnings (724.45) (682.91)

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability(asset)

Under Ind AS. remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of
statement of profit and loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. There is
no impact on the total equity

Impairment of financial assets:

Under previous GAAP. the allowance for the receivables turned doubtful was made based on the assessment on case to case basis. Under Ind AS, the
same is required to be computed as per the impairment principles lead out in Ind AS 109-Financial [nstruments, which prescribe the expected credit loss
model (ECL Model) for the same. On applying the ECL Model. there is no reduction or incremental provision. Hence. there is no impact on equity.

Fair valuation of investments subsequently measured under FVTPL:

Under the previous GAAP. investment in mutual funds were classificd as current investments based on the intended holding period and realisability Such
current investments were carried at lower of cost or fair value. Under Ind AS, this investments are required to be measured at fair value, The resulting fair
value changes of these inyvestments have been recognised in equity as at the date of transition and subsequently in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
vear ended 31 March 2023 upon the subsequent measurement category for the investments.

Year ended
Statement of fit and |
i g 31 March 2023

Profit or loss :
Other income - Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net change in fair value 74.65
OoCl:
Financial asset at tur value through OCT - net change in fair value -
Adjustment before income tax 74.65

Asat As at
Balance Sheet 31 March 2023 L April 2022
Investments - Financial asscts at FVTPL 325529 2,274.10
Related tax effect (62.10) (43.36)
Adjustment to retained earnings 3.193.20 2,230.73 & Co

o~
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All comounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

56 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)

©

Amortised cost accounting for security deposits:

Under Previous GAAP, intercst free seeurity deposits were recognised at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, thesc deposits arc initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period. Accordingly, the difference between transaction value and fair
value of these deposils is recognised as Right-of-use assets or Prepaid expense and is amortised over the period of the lease term or agreement of deposit.
respectively. Further. interest is accrued on present value of these security deposits.

Effective Interest Rate(EIR) adjustments of transaction cost integral to the sourcing of loans /borrowings:

Under previous GAAP, all the transaction costs integral to sourcing of loans/borrowings were recognised upfront on a accrual basis. Under Ind AS, this
transactions costs related to sourcing of loans/borrowings are amortised using EIR and unamortised portion is adjusted in equity as at transition date and
subsequently in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Business combinations

The impact arising from the change as follows:

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains or losses), including merger
of a subsidiary with the parent. arising from intra-group transactions. are eliminated.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with cquity-accounted investees are climinated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains. but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Balances
such as receivables or payables and deposits or loans to or from equity-accounted investees and interest income or expense arising on balances with equity-
accounted investees are not eliminated.




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

56 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)
h  Joint venture
Under the previous GAAP, GMR Hospitality Limited was classified as a jointly controlled entity and accordingly accounted for using proportionate
consolidation method. On transition to Ind AS, GMR Hospitality Limited has been classified as a joint venture has been consolidated using equity
method as per Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. No impairment has been identified on the investment at the date of transition.
Details of assets, liabilities along with the consequential changes in the statement of profit and loss as well as cash flow statement are summarised below.

The proportionately consolidated amounts of assets and liabilitics of GMR Hospitality Limited under the previous GAAP were as below:

As at
31 March 2023
Property, plant and equipment 10.00
Capital Work-in-progress 4.28
Other Intangible assets 0.21
Other financial assets 0.99
Deferred tax assets (net) 0.86
Other tax assets (net) 0.07
Other assets 4.75
Inventorics 0.61
Trade receivables 0.14
Cash and cash equivalents 13.44
Provisions (0.15)
Trade payable (7.24)
Other financial liabilities (6.22)
Total net assets 21.74

The proportionately consolidated amounts of income and expenses under previous GAAP were as below:

For the period 25
July 2022 to
31 March 2023

Revenuc from operation 45.09
Other Income 1.29
Cost of materials consumed (13.44)
Employee benefits expenses x (17.53)
Finance costs (0.00)
Depreciation and amortisation (0.75)
Other expenscs (26.11)
Tax expenses 2.88
Net profit after tax (8.57)

Analysis of changes in eash and cash equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows under Ind AS is as under

As at

31 March 2023

Cash and cash equivalents as per previous GAAP 434,77
Joint venture - equity accounting (1344
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cashflow under Ind 421.33

i  Deferred tax assets

The above changes (decreased)/Increase the deferred tax liability as follows based on a tax rate of 25.168 percent:

As at As at

31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Lease arrangement 248.75 234.87
Other financial assets-security deposit 53.58 57.39
Fair valuation of investments (62.10) (43.36)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary differences B 200.02
On undistributed profit of subsidiary (33.35) (5.81)
Others (8.48) (3.55)
(Decrease) /Increase in deferred tax liability 198.40 439.56

i Regrouping and reclassifications:
Appropriatc regrouping/reclassification adjustments have been carricd out for previous GAAP numbers, wherever required, by reclassification of the

corresponding items of incom ics, assets and liabilities, in order to bring them in line with the requirements of the Ind AS.
D 4]
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
A amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stuted)

Segment reporting

The Group mainly derive revenuc from Travel QSR outlets and Lounge services. In addition, the Group also derive revenue from management and other
services. The Group has disclosed products and service lines in "Note 34 - Revenue [fom operations” because of the nature and expected infrequency of the
cvents giving risc to them, so as to allow users to understand better. This products and service lines is only onc operating segment, whosc operating results arc
regularly reviewed by the entity’s Board of Directors (‘Chief Operating Decision Maker”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated and assess its
performance. Hence, there are no scparate reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”. The Group primarily operates within
[ndia.

Transfer pricing

The Company's management has developed a system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Section
92 to 92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company's management is of the opinion that its intcrnational transactions arc at anm’s length so the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Additional regulatory information pursuant to the requirement in Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013:

(i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources ot kind of funds) by the Company,
subsidiary companics, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or cntity(ics), including forcign cntitics
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of The Company, subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company,
incorporated in India (“Ultimatc Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benceficiaries.

(ii) No funds have been received by / from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company, subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India shall directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ili} The Company, subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India does not have any transactions and balances with
companies which are struck off.

(iv) The Company, its subsidiary companics, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India docs not have any Benami property, where any
proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company for holding any Benami

property.

(v) The Company, its subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India has not traded or invested in crypto currency or
virtual currency during the financial year,

(vi) The Company, its subsidiary companics, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in [ndia has not granted any loans or advances in the naturc
of loans to promoters, directors and KMPs, cither severally or jointly with any other person.

(vii) The Company, its subsidiary companies. its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in [ndia has not any such trunsaction which is not recorded
in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search
or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, [rom banks on the basis of security of current assets.
The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agrecement with the books of account of the Company.

(ix) The Company, its subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company, incorporated in India have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(x) The Company. subsidiary companies, its associates and joint venture company, incorperated in India has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(xi) The Company, subsidiary companics. its associates and joint venturc company, incorporated in India has complicd with the number of layers prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Onc of the entity in the Group had entered into agreement Lo provide food and beverages outlet services at Okhla Metro for the perind of 15 years, The carrying
amount of the feasc liability as at 29 February 2024 was INR 160 57 million and the right-of-usc assct was INR 112 53 millions. Duc to a significant decline in
market demand, the Group bas decided to terminate the contract having recoverable amount of the cquipment was determined to be less than its carying
amount. which has resulted in change in the lease payments and lease term. Accordingly, the Company has recorded gain on lease termination of INR 48.05
millions in the statement of profit and loss.

In view of uncenainty of continuation Qkhla Metro, emanating from termination of lease agreement, the Group has also impaired the carrying value ol
remaining property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as at 29 February 2024

Subsequent event

(i) TFS Gurgaon Airport Services Private Limited. wholly owned subsidiary of the company. has been incorporated w e.f |9 April 2024

(i1) On 19 Scptember 2024, the Board of Dircctors of the Company have declared an interim dividend of INR 43 40 per share in respeet of financial year 2023-
2024 which resulted in cash outflow of INR t6 84 millions

As per our report of cven date attached

ForBSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Travel Food Services Private Limited
ICAI Firm Regisiration I'l\l‘lf'ﬂbl:l' 10(1248W'W-100022 CIN: US5209MH2007PTC 176045
Farhad Bamji ) Karan Kapur Varun Kapur
Partner Director Director
Mecmbership No: 105234 DIN: 0171148 DIN: 0113399
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 Scptember 2024 Date: 30 September 2024
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